
City Council Development Committee – September 19, 2023   Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

CITY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 AT 3:30 PM 

AGENDA 

The meeting will be held at City Hall Council Briefing Room, 300 W. Main St, Grand Prairie, Texas, 

and a quorum of the committee or the presiding member will be physically present. Some members may 

participate remotely via video conference. 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA ITEMS 

Citizens may speak for five minutes on any item on the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker 

card. 

1. Minutes of the August 15, 2023 City Council Development Committee Meeting 

2. 2024 City Council Development Committee Meeting Schedule 

3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Development Agreement with HC GPM, LLC, HC 

Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P for the Lakesong Planned Development 

4. Resolution Consenting to the Creation of Lakesong Municipal Management District Number 1, 

an In-City Municipal Management District 

5. Resolution Giving Consent to the Annexation of Land into the Lakesong Municipal 

Management District No. 1, an In-City Municipal Management District, with said Consent 

Being Effective Upon Annexation of the Land into the City of Grand Prairie 

6. Change Order 01 with Landmark Structures in the amount of $969,004 for redesigned graphics 

and additional lighting features for the Robinson Road Elevated Storage Tank 

7. Change Order No. 4 with Dallas County for the widening and extension of Wildlife Pkwy 

between Belt Line Rd and SH 161 in the amount of $2,719,383 with the City’s contribution for 

Change Order No. 4 being $1,614,601 

8. Annual Contract for highway safety and traffic control products from Centerline Supply, LTD 

(up to $400,000.00 annually) through a national interlocal agreement with BuyBoard.  This 

contract will be for one year with the option to renew for three additional one-year periods 

totaling $1,600,000.00 if all extensions are exercised 

9. Construction contract with Andale Construction, Inc. to furnish and install OxCon resurfacing 

material on the 100 to 300 block of West Main Street behind business parking lots in the 

amount not to exceed $717,973.40 

1



City Council Development Committee – September 19, 2023   Page 2 of 2 

10. Annual Contract for Easement and Alley Clearing to Bronco Land Clearing up to $850,000 

annually. This contract will be for one year with the option to renew for four additional one-

year periods totaling $2,749,000 if all extensions are exercised 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council Development Committee may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following: 

(1)        Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” 

(2)        Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property” 

(3)        Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters” 

(4)        Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations.”  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 972-237-8035 or 

email GPCitySecretary@gptx.org at least three (3) business days prior to the scheduled meeting to 

request an accommodation. 

Certification 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the City Council 

Development Committee meeting agenda was prepared and posted September 15, 2023. 

 

 

 
 

Mona Lisa Galicia, City Secretary 

 

2



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Mike Del Bosque, Chairman 

TITLE: Minutes of the August 15, 2023 City Council Development Committee 

Meeting 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

 

  

 

3

Item 1.



City Council Development Committee – August 15, 2023   Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

CITY COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
COUNCIL BRIEFING ROOM 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 15, 2023 AT 3:30 PM 

MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

Chairman Mike Del Bosque 

Council Member Jacquin Headen 

Mayor Pro Tem John Lopez 

Chairman Del Bosque called the meeting to order at 3:31 p.m. 

AGENDA ITEMS 

Citizens may speak for five minutes on any item on the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker 

card. 

1. Minutes of the July 11, 2023 City Council Development Committee Meeting 

Council Member Headen moved, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Lopez to approve this item.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 

2. Proposed street name change request to change Esplanade Drive, from Warrior Trail North to 

the current street end which is approximately 1000-feet, to Selena Gomez Boulevard, and to 

build a monument for photo opportunities      

Deputy City Manager Bill Hills informed the committee the proposed street name change 

request to change Esplanade Drive, from Warrior Trail North to the current street end which is 

approximately 1000-feet, to Selena Gomez Boulevard, and to build a monument for photo 

opportunities. 

Mayor Pro Tem Lopez said there are several locations named after Selena Gomez in other 

cities and noted Selena Gomez is excited to have a location named after her in her 

hometown.  Chairman Del Bosque agreed noting this would bring much excitement as well to 

the citizen of Grand Prairie.  Council Member Headen inquired if there was a monument for 

consideration at this point.  Mr. Hills said not at this time.  Council Member Headen asked 

staff to consider doing a special event for the street name change and monument unveiling on 

the same day.  Mr. Hills said upon Council approval, staff would make the necessary 

preparations and work with Ms. Gomez's publicist.  Mayor Pro Tem Lopez asked that a 

rendering of the monument be given to Ms. Gomez's publicist as soon as it becomes available 

for their consideration and approval. 

4

Item 1.



City Council Development Committee – August 15, 2023   Page 2 of 2 

Mayor Pro Tem Lopez moved to approve, seconded by Council Member Headen to adopt the 

street name change as presented and work on the potential monument.  The motion carried 

unanimously.   

3. Discussion on Gateway Plan and Entertainment District Areas 

Planning and Development Director Rashad Jackson presented the committee an overview on 

the Gateway Plan and Entertainment District Areas. 

Mr. Jackson noted in his presentation available acreage.  Chairman Del Bosque asked what 

would be good to go at this location.  Mr. Hills advised the committee the engineering 

department is working on the hydraulic study of this area to confirm the acreage available for 

use.  Engineering Services Director Noreen Housewright said the hydraulic study would be 

completed later this year and noted there are some wetlands that the study previously 

mentioned would help determine the best use for this area as well.  Council Member Headen 

said she would be interested in the wetlands being a water attraction.  Mayor Pro Tem Lopez 

and Council Member Headen inquired if the study would indicate the best use for this 

area.  Mr. Jackson said the Omni Plan shows retail on bottom with multifamily 

above.  Economic Development Director Marty Wieder provided the committee with additional 

information noting continued contact with the OHT Partners adding the high interest rates has 

caused the pause.  Mr. Wieder mentioned the high-speed rail presentation will be given to 

Council at the September 6th meeting that will include this area. 

Chairman Del Bosque said it is time to create a vision that is sustainable and would like this 

committee's input on their vision goals.  Mayor Pro Tem Lopez agreed and said this would be 

most helpful in the next couple of years. Chairman Del Bosque added it would be most 

beneficial to start planning now and creating a master plan for the entire city of Grand Prairie 

and the entertainment district. Mr. Hills said the city is including the master plan in the budget 

and to start the master plan from the south to the north. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

No executive session was held. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Del Bosque adjourned the meeting a 4:05 p.m. 

 

5

Item 1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Mike Del Bosque, Chairman 

TITLE: 2024 City Council Development Committee Meeting Schedule 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

 

  

 

6

Item 2.



2024 City Council Development Committee 

 Meeting Schedule 

 

January 16 

February 20 

March 19 

April 16 

May 21 

June 18 

July 16 

August 20 

September 17 

October 15 

November 19 

December 17 

7

Item 2.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

TITLE: Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Development Agreement 

with HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P 

for the Lakesong Planned Development 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(City Council Development Committee on 09/19/2023) 

  

 

In 2009, the City approved a development agreement for the Windsor Hills planned development 

located in the extra-territorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of the City.  The agreement was amended in 2011.  In 

2022, the developer sold a significant portion of the land to companies controlled by Huffines.  Huffines 

intends to develop the land as Lakesong and has worked with city staff on development standards for the 

land.  The development includes approximately 37 acres of mixed use development with at least 20% 

devoted to non-residential uses, 65 acres of urban residential, 620 acres of medium residential, 50 acres 

of estate residential, and 330 acres of open space or parks with a connected public trail system.  The 

residential development will include a mixture of housing types and densities.   

The agreement anticipates the infrastructure for the Lakesong Development will be funded in part by 

Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1 (“District”).  The agreement provides for the ETJ land 

to be annexed into the City after the District is formally created and the ETJ land is removed from an 

existing fresh water supply district.  Formal creation of the District requires approval by the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”) which is anticipated to take six months to a year.  

The creation of the district as an in-city district and addition of the ETJ land into the district is being 

presented for consideration concurrently with this item.   

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE LAKESONG 

DEVELOPMENT AND RECOGNIZING THE CURRENT UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE 

OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

 

WHEREAS,   HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P, own approximately 

1,200 acres of land (the “Property”) located within the corporate boundaries of the City of Grand Prairie 

or its extra-territorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”); and 

8

Item 3.



Page 2 of 2 

 

WHEREAS,  HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P wish to develop the 

Property all within the corporate boundaries of the City of Grand Prairie; and 

 

WHEREAS,  HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, Riverside DPH, L.P, and the City desire to 

establish the development standards and conditions precedent to annexation for the Property currently 

located in the City’s ETJ. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

SECTION 1.   The City Manager is authorized to execute a development agreement with HC GPM, 

LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P, which provides the development standards 

applicable to the Lakesong ETJ Development and conditions precedent to annexation of the property. 

 

SECTION 2. Exhibit “A” represents the Unified Development Code, exclusive of Planned 

Developments and Specific Use Permits, as it exists as of September 19, 2023, for the purposes of 

administration of the development agreement. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 

 

9

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

TITLE: Resolution Consenting to the Creation of Lakesong Municipal 

Management District Number 1, an In-City Municipal Management 

District 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

 

Create an In-City Municipal Management District which will provide funding for roads, water, and 

wastewater to support the Lakesong development. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

In 2009, the City approved a development agreement for the Windsor Hills planned development 

located in the extra-territorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of the City.  The agreement was amended in 2011.  In 

2022, the developer sold a significant portion of the land to companies controlled by Huffines.  The 

Lakesong Development Agreement is being presented for consideration concurrently with this item. 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, GIVING CONSENT TO THE 

CREATION OF THE LAKESONG MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1  

 

WHEREAS, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (referred to herein as the 

"Petitioner") has petitioned the City of Grand Prairie (the "City") requesting consent to the creation of the 

Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1 ("District") encompassing 61.31 acres located within the 

corporate limits of the City ("Land"); and  

 

WHEREAS, a copy of such petition is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof (the 

"Petition"); and 

 

WHEREAS, Petitioner intends to request that the District be governed by a Board of Directors consisting 

of five (5) persons and proposes the names of the five (5) initial Directors; and     

WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code, Section 375.022(c)(6), provides that a petition to the Texas 

10

Item 4.



Page 2 of 2 

Commission on Environmental Quality ("TCEQ") requesting creation of the District must include a 

resolution of the City Council in support of creation of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to adopt a Resolution consenting to the creation of the 

District subject to the conditions set forth herein.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.   All of the matters and facts set out in the preamble hereof be true and correct. 

SECTION 2.   The City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, hereby gives its written consent by 

resolution, as provided by Section 375.022(c)(6), Texas Local Government Code, to creation of the 

Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1 and the inclusion of the Land in the District upon the 

condition that no additional land may be added to the District unless (a) such additional land is within 

the City's corporate boundary, (b) no more than 95 acres of such additional land was in the City’s 

corporate boundary on the date this Resolution was passed and approved, and (c) such additional land is 

added solely in conformance with the requirements of the Development Agreement between the City, 

HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC and Riverside DPH, L.P. effective on September 19, 2023, as 

amended. 

 

SECTION 3.  The City supports the District being governed by a five (5) person Board of Directors and 

the appointment by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality of the five (5) persons listed in the 

Petition. 

 

SECTION 4.  Pursuant to the provision of Texas Local Government Code 375.207(b) the City consents 

to the issuance of bonds by the District for the facilities and budgeted amount referenced in the Petition. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 

 

11

Item 4.



EXHIBIT A - PETITION

12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Megan Mahan, City Attorney 

TITLE: Resolution Giving Consent to the Annexation of Land into the 

Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1, an In-City Municipal 

Management District, with said Consent Being Effective Upon 

Annexation of the Land into the City of Grand Prairie 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

 

Authorize the addition of approximately 1139 acres of land into the Lakesong Municipal Management 

District No. 1.  The authorization will not be effective until after the land is annexed into the City. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

In 2009, the City approved a development agreement for the Windsor Hills planned development 

located in the extra-territorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”) of the City.  The agreement was amended in 2011.  In 

2022, the developer sold a significant portion of the land to companies controlled by Huffines.  The 

Lakesong Development Agreement and creation of Lakesong MMD No. 1 are being presented for 

consideration concurrently with this item. 

BODY 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, GIVING CONSENT TO THE 

ANNEXATION OF LAND INTO THE LAKESONG MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 

NO. 1 

 

WHEREAS, HC GPM, LLC, a Texas limited liability company and Riverside DPH, L.P. (referred 

to collectively herein as the "Petitioner") have petitioned the City of Grand Prairie (the "City") 

requesting consent to the annexation of a total of 1,139.12 acres of land (the "Property") located in 

Ellis County, Texas, into the Lakesong Municipal Management District No. I ("District"); and  

 

WHEREAS, a copy of such petition is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof (the 

"Petition"); and 

 

17

Item 5.



Page 2 of 2 

WHEREAS, the District to be created by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

("TCEQ") will encompass the 61.31 acres described in Exhibit "B" to the Petition; and 

  

WHEREAS, a portion of the Property lies within the corporate limits of the City and the remainder 

lies wholly within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City ("ETJ"); and 

 

WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code, Section 375.043, provides that following approval of 

the City Council of the City, the District may annex land using the procedures in Texas Water Code, 

Sections 49.301 and 54.016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the approval of annexation of the Property into the District is required by Section 

375.043(a), Texas Local Government Code, must be freely given and the deemed or forced consent 

under Section 42.042, Texas Local Government Code, and Section 54.016, Texas Water Code do not 

apply to annexation of land by the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to adopt a Resolution consenting to the annexation 

of the Property into the District subject to the conditions set forth herein.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. That all of the matters and facts set out in the preamble hereof are true and correct. 

 

SECTION 2. That the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, hereby gives its written 

consent, as provided by Section 42.042, Texas Local Government Code, and Section 54.016, Texas 

Water Code, to the annexation of the Property into the Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 

1, conditioned upon: (a) all of the Property being located within the corporate limits of the City before 

the Property is annexed into the District, (b) no petition for release of any portion of the Property from 

the ETJ is received from the City prior to the City annexing all of the Property in the City’s ETJ on 

the date this Resolution was passed and approved, (c) no such additional land, other than the Property, 

was in the City’s corporate boundary on the date the District was created by TCEQ, and (d) such 

additional land is added solely in conformance with the requirements of the Development Agreement 

between the City, HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC and Riverside DPH, L.P. effective on 

September 19, 2023, as amended. 

 

SECTION 3. That this Resolution shall become effective upon the City's annexation of the entire 

portion of the Property located in the City's ETJ. 

 

SECTION 4. That pursuant to the provision of Texas Local Government Code 375.207(b) the City 

consents to the issuance of bonds by the District for the facilities and budgeted amount referenced in 

the Petition. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, 

TEXAS, ON THIS THE 19TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023. 

 

18

Item 5.



EXHIBIT A - Petition

19

Item 5.



20

Item 5.



21

Item 5.



22

Item 5.



23

Item 5.



24

Item 5.



25

Item 5.



26

Item 5.



27

Item 5.



28

Item 5.



29

Item 5.



30

Item 5.



31

Item 5.



32

Item 5.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Noreen Housewright, Director of Engineering Services 

TITLE: Change Order 01 with Landmark Structures in the amount of $969,004 

for redesigned graphics and additional lighting features for the 

Robinson Road Elevated Storage Tank 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Vendor Name Total Cost 

Landmark Structures $12,255,004 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

 

On November 15, 2022, the City Council approved a construction contract with Landmark Structures for 

the construction of the Robinson Road 2.0 Million Gallon Elevated Storage Tank in the amount of 

$11,286,000.00; 5% construction contingency of $564,300.00, material testing with Team Consultants 

in the amount of $22,482.60; and in house engineering in the amount of $112,860.00 for a total of 

$11,985,642.60. The total funding allocated to the storage tank and pump station is $23,266,836. 

 

Change Order/Addendum No.1 provides for the addition of new logos across the sides and top of the 

Elevated Storage Tank for $642,754 and pedestal-mounted lighting fixtures for $326,250. Funding for 

this change order comes from contingency funds already approved by the City Council as well as 

additional funds available in the project budget. 

 

HISTORY: 

 

 Amount Approval Date Reason 

Original Contract: $11,286,000 11/15/2022 Original contract to complete 

construction of EST 

Change Order #01 $642,754 9/19/2023 New artwork 

 $326.250 9/19/2023 New lighting 

    

TOTAL: $12,255,004   

     

33

Item 6.



Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Budgeted? ☒ Fund Name: Water CIP Fund 

Remaining 

Funding 
$406,096 Total Project 

Budget 
$23,266,836 

 

ATTACHMENTS / SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1- Design and Lighting Renderings 

 

34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



Top of the Elevated Storage Tank Bowl

37

Item 6.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Walter Shumac, III, P.E., Director of Transportation and Mobility 

TITLE: Change Order No. 4 with Dallas County for the widening and extension 

of Wildlife Pkwy between Belt Line Rd and SH 161 in the amount of 

$2,719,383 with the City’s contribution for Change Order No. 4 being 

$1,614,601 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Vendor Name Change order #4 Cost Total Cost 

Dallas County  $2,719,383; City Share $1,614,601 $59,683,506 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

On Tuesday, April 2, 2014, the City of Grand Prairie awarded a contract for the widening and extension 

of Wildlife Pkwy between Belt Line Road and SH 161, (W.O. #611.35) for $25,000,000.00. 

 

On Tuesday, January 24, 2017, the Grand Prairie City Council Approved Change Order No. 1 to the 

contract for a new total project cost of $32,000,000.  

 

On Tuesday, August 16, 2022, the Grand Prairie City Council Approved Change Order No. 2 to the 

contract for a new total project cost of $55,946,070.  

 

On Tuesday, January 17, 2023, the Grand Prairie City Council Approved Developer Requested 

Betterments in the total of $918,053.00. Developer funding to cover design changes to be deposited into 

project account.  

 

On Tuesday, May 2, 2023, the Grand Prairie City Council Approved Change Order No. 3 to the contract 

for a new total project cost of $56,964,123. 

 

This proposed Change Order No. 4 will increase the total contract amount to $59,683,506. This is an 

increase of the City’s share in the amount of $1,614,601. The City’s contributions to the project funding 

will total $19,148,437. 

 

 

38

Item 7.



Page 2 of 2 

FUNDING HISTORY (2 to 3 yrs info): 

 

 Amount Approval Date Reason 

Original Contract: $25,000,000 4/2/2014 Original contract amount  

Change Order #1 $7,000,000 1/24/2017 Construction cost and material  

Change Order #2 $23,946,070 8/16/2022 Construction cost and material  

Developer 

Betterments 

$918,053.00 1/17/2023 Full cost of betterments covered by 

developer 

Change Order #3 $100,000 5/2/2023 Construction cost and material  

Change Order #4 $2,719,383 9/19/2023 Construction cost and material  

TOTAL: $59,683,506   

 

PROCUREMENT DETAILS: 
 

Procurement Method:  ☒ Professional Services  
 

W.O #:611.35 

Selection Details: ☐ Low Bid  ☒Best Value  

   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Budgeted? ☒ Fund Name: Streets CIP Fund 

 

ATTACHMENTS / SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1- Attachment B-4 

 

 

39

Item 7.



40

Item 7.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Caryl DeVries, P.E., PTOE, Asst Director, Transportation & Mobility 

TITLE: Annual Contract for highway safety and traffic control products from 

Centerline Supply, LTD (up to $400,000.00 annually) through a national 

interlocal agreement with BuyBoard.  This contract will be for one year 

with the option to renew for three additional one-year periods totaling 

$1,600,000.00 if all extensions are exercised 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Vendor Name Annual Cost Total Cost 

Centerline Supply $400,000.00 $1,600,000.00 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The initial contract from 2020 with Centerline Supply was for $200,000 and at the time was only 

covering the Streets division.  This contract will be for various City departments to utilize for the 

purchase of highway safety and traffic control products such as highway/traffic/parking lot products; 

pavement marking supplies/equipment; delineation products/object markers; road signs; fire hydrants; 

wheel wash systems; locking systems on an as needed basis. 

 

Buyboard Contract 703-23 | Highway Safety and Traffic Control Products 

 

Chapter 271.102 of the Local Government Code authorizes local governments to participate in a 

cooperative purchasing program with another local government or local cooperative organization. In lieu 

of competitive bidding, items and services may be purchased through such agreements as the agreements 

have already been bid by the sponsoring entity including Buyboard.   

 

Centerline Supply, LTD through their BuyBoard contract offers 10% discounts on all highway safety and 

traffic control devices it carries.  The BuyBoard contract began June 1, 2023 and will expire May 31, 

2024. 

 

 

 

 

41

Item 8.



Page 2 of 2 

 

SPENDING HISTORY (2 to 3 yrs info): 

 

 Amount Year Reason 

Initial Year: $90,625.95 2020 Initial Contract with Centerline 

Supply 

Year #1 $116,897.61 2021 Renewal  

Year #2 $117,553.26 2022 Renewal 

TOTAL: $325,076.82   

 

PROCUREMENT DETAILS: 

Procurement Method:  ☒ Cooperative/Interlocal  
 

☒ Local Vendor  ☐ HUB Vendor    

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Budgeted? ☒ Fund Name: All Operating Funds  

 

42

Item 8.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Clark A Davis, Jr., Assistant Director, Transportation & Mobility 

TITLE: Construction contract with Andale Construction, Inc. to furnish and 

install OxCon resurfacing material on the 100 to 300 block of West 

Main Street behind business parking lots in the amount not to exceed 

$717,973.40 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Vendor Name Total Cost 

Andale Construction, Inc. Not to exceed $717,943.40 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

 

The resurfacing of businesses’ parking lots on the 100 to 300 block of West Main Street is part of the 

city’s Downtown Business Development Initiative for continued improvements to sidewalks, parking, 

lighting, streetscaping, and traffic signals. The goal is to create a visually pleasing exterior that aid in 

businesses’ curb appeal, attracting more customers in the area. 

 

Transportation Services chose OxCon resurfacing material for the parking lots because of its durability 

and effectiveness in repairing worn, damaged asphalt and concrete surfaces. The material is durable, 

chemical, and weather-resistant.  

 

Local Government Code Chapter 252 provides an exemption from the competitive bid process when an 

item or service is available from only one source. Andale Construction, Inc. is the only authorized 

contractor in the Texas Market to install OxCon Systems Surfacing products. 

 

PROCUREMENT DETAILS: 

 

Sole Source   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Budgeted? ☒ Fund Name:  Street CIP Fund 

 

43

Item 9.



Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS / SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1- Sole Source Justification 

2- Price Quote OxCon Systems 

3- OxCon Concrete Surfacer Product Information 

44

Item 9.



09/05/2023

09/05/2024

45

Item 9.



46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



53

Item 9.



54

Item 9.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/19/2023 

PRESENTER: Clark A. Davis, Jr., Assistant Director of Transportation & Mobility 

TITLE: Annual Contract for Easement and Alley Clearing to Bronco Land 

Clearing up to $850,000 annually. This contract will be for one year 

with the option to renew for four additional one-year periods totaling 

$2,749,000 if all extensions are exercised 

REVIEWING 

COMMITTEE: 

(Reviewed by the City Council Development Committee on 

09/19/2023) 

  

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Vendor Name Annual Cost Total Cost 

Bronco Land Clearing $850,000 $2,749,000 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

 

This annual contract will be utilized to remove trees and shrubs to clear easements and alleys within the 

City of Grand Prairie. 

 

Five vendors attended the Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting on August 29, 2023. Notice of Bid# 23192 was 

advertised in the Fort Worth Star-Telegram and was sent out to 101 vendors. Two vendors submitted 

bids of which one is a Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) and no Grand Prairie vendors were 

available. The Bid Tabulation & Evaluation Score Card is shown in Attachment 1. 

 

The bid from Bronco Land Clearing meets specifications and is recommended for an award. The award 

was based on the best value criteria set up in the specification, including price, experience, reputation, 

and past relationship with the city and other Governmental Agencies. 

 

Annual estimated quantities are not known and vary from year to year.  Quantities provided for the bid 

were initial estimates, but after bids were received, staff determined larger quantities would likely be 

needed for FY 24.  Therefore, this contract was updated to have a not-to-exceed amount of $850,000. 

 

PROCUREMENT DETAILS: 

 

Procurement Method:  ☒ RFB  
 

55

Item 10.



Page 2 of 2 

☐ Local Vendor  ☒ HUB Vendor - WO 
 

Number of Responses: 2   RFB #: 23192 

 

Selection Details: ☐ Low Bid  ☒Best Value  

   

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATION: 

Budgeted? ☒ Fund Name:  Unobligated Streets Fund 

 

If Capital Improvement: 

Total 

Project 

Budget 

$850,000 Proposed 

New 

Funding: 

$0.00 Remaining 

Funding: 

$0.00 

 

ATTACHMENTS / SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 

1- Bid Tabulation and Evaluation Score Card 

 

 

56

Item 10.



Easement and Alley Clearing  

RFB #23192 

TABULATION 

 

 

 

 

SCORECARD 

 

 

57

Item 10.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes of the August 15, 2023, City Council Development Committee Meeting
	08.15.2023 CCDC Minutes Communication Form
	08-15-2023 CCDC MInutes

	Item 2.	2024 City Council Development Committee Schedule
	2024 CCDC Meeting Schedule
	2024 City Council Development Committee Meeting Schedule

	Item 3.	Res: Lakesong 1
	DA Amendment

	Item 4.	Res: Lakesong 2
	Resolution Consenting to Creation Lakesong MMD
	District Creation Petition - Exhibit

	Item 5.	Res: Lakesong Item 3
	Resolution Annexing Land Lakesong MMD
	District Annexation Petition - Exhibit

	Item 6.	Change Order 01 - Robinson Road Elevated Storage Tank
	Robinson Rd. EST Change Order 01 CC & CCDC Communication
	Design and Lighting Renderings

	Item 7.	Change Order No. 4 - Wildlife Pkwy
	Wildlife Pkwy Change Order #4
	Wildlife attachement B-4

	Item 8.	Centerline Supply price agreement
	CC Centerline Supply - Transportation

	Item 9.	Construction Contract for Resurfacing of 100 to 300 block of West Main Street Businesses' Parking Lots
	W Main Street Parking Lots Resurfacing
	Sole Source Justification
	Price Quote OxCon Systems
	OxCon Systems Concrete Surfacer Product Information

	Item 10.	Annual Contract for Easement and Alley Clearing
	Annual Contract for Easement and Alley Clearing
	RFB 23192 Easement and Alley Clearing Bid Tabulation and Score Card

	Bottom

